








































APPENDIX A 



U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Marshals Service 
Investigative Operations Division 

www.usdoj.gov/marshals

May 9, 2008 

By email to Bobby.Wiggins@Neustar.biz

Mr. Bobby Wiggins, Director of Fiduciary Services 

LEAP Program Manager 

Neustar, Inc. 

46000 Center Oak Plaza 

Sterling, VA 20166 

RE: Addition of SPID Field to LEAP Database 

Dear Mr. Wiggins, 

I understand that you will soon be testifying before the carrier representatives to make a 

case for having the alternate SPID field available in LEAP. As you know, this is code that 

specifies when a carrier has given or resold a ten-digit telephone number to a VoIP 

provider, MVNO, cable provider or telecom reseller.

I cannot tell you how much unnecessary investigative delay and wasted resources – both 

law enforcement’s and communications carrier’s – not having this information available 

in LEAP has already cost.  In nearly every investigation where the registered carrier does 

not provide services directly to the customer, we wind up needlessly preparing and 

serving subpoenas, court orders, or search warrants on the wrong company, only to learn 

the customer is not the communication provider’s that was served.  Further, in life or 

death emergencies, this causes untold delay and inexcusable compromise to public safety.

LEAP does not currently give us this field.  Its inclusion would immediately and 

measurably reduce the useless legal process, delay and wasted manpower described 

above.  The addition of this information to the LEAP database would significantly benefit 

law enforcement, the public we serve, and each and every compliance office. 

As a LEAP customer, the U.S. Marshals Service strongly supports this effort.  Please 

contact me at 866-778-5378 ext. 7092 if there is any way our support can help 

accomplish this worthy and critical effort. 

   Sincerely, 

Steven M. Lowenstein, Inspector & Legal Advisor 

Investigative Operations Division 
Technical Operations Group 



_______________________________________________________________ 
From: Josh Landers [mailto:LandersJ@co.rockland.ny.us]  
Sent: Friday, May 16, 2008 1:30 PM 
To: Wiggins, Bobby 
Subject: G/S J.K. Landers - Rockland County, NY District Attorney'sOffice 

Please route to: 

Mr. Bobby Wiggins 
Director, Fiduciary Services 
Program Manager-LEAP 
NeuStar, Inc. 

Greetings,

My name is Josh Landers and I serve as a member of the Office of the District Attorney of Rockland 
County - NY. 
As a member of that office, I supervise applied and operational technologies including Court-Ordered 
Electronic Surveillance (ELSUR) and Subpoena Compliance with regard to telecommunications carriers. 

As you may know, Rockland County is one of the several counties that surround the five boroughs of New 
York City. 
The Office of the District Attorney conducts a significant number of ELSUR cases each year with respect 
to the activities of its Narcotics Task Force and its  County Intelligence Center. 

I wish to inform you at our office and the investigative groups that I supervise strongly support the 
proposal to populate the Neustar database Alternate SPID field with additional and more granular carrier 
information. Our groups can be spared hours of additional research time with the addition of this 
information. In cases where time is of the essence, the value of the additional information is self-evident.  

We applaud Neustar's efforts to drive this useful even fundamental improvement forward. Please advise 
me if our members can bolster your efforts by any additional communication or participation. 

Respectfully yours, 

J.K. Landers 

Group Supervisor Josh Landers 
Office of the District Attorney 
Rockland County, New York 
NTF Applied Technologies Unit 
1 South Main Street - Suite 500 
New City, NY 10956 

Reception Desk:(845) 638-5030 
Mobile Number:(845) 629-5244 
Fax: (845) 267-5100 
E-mail: landersj@co.rockland.ny.us

_______________________________________________________________ 



From: Dawson, Andy [mailto:Andy.Dawson@montgomerycountymd.gov]  
Sent: Friday, May 09, 2008 3:24 PM 
To: Wiggins, Bobby 
Subject: Request for Feedback 

Mr. Wiggins:  In response to your request for feedback, I would like to say that Neustar’s LEAP product 
has significantly streamlined the portion of our telephone investigation process that pertains to proper 
carrier identification.   

In the Montgomery County Police Department, LEAP is used by patrol officers, detectives, and at our 
Emergency Communications Center (ECC).  All of our LEAP users have experienced a decrease in the 
amount of time it takes to identify the correct carrier for a given phone number.  In the past, our personnel 
utilized www.fonefinder.net or www.telcodata.us in an attempt to learn the correct carrier.  Since these 
websites are essentially operated by hobbyists, there was no guarantee of accurate information.  After 
performing an initial inquiry on one of those websites, personnel who were aware of the manual IVR 
system would take the second step and call to see if their target number had been ported.  In many 
cases, people weren’t even aware that the manual IVR system existed.  I can only imagine the number of 
phone calls and subpoenas that were misdirected to carriers, delaying the process of obtaining the 
required information to pursue investigations. 

Now that a majority of our personnel have become familiar with LEAP, the inefficient, two-step process of 
identifying a carrier is streamlined into a single online inquiry.  This has been especially helpful at ECC 
where supervisors are frequently talking on the phone and operating a computer simultaneously.  They 
can determine the official carrier of record for a target number without interrupting a phone conversation 
with field personnel or command staff.  Although I am not able to point to any specific examples, I’m 
certain that during a hostage/barricade or kidnapping situation, ECC will determine the correct carrier in a 
much more timely fashion than they would using a website and the manual IVR. 

In the immediate future, law enforcement agencies still have a need for additional information.  The 
evolution of the VoIP market provides new challenges to investigators.  In the case of VoIP, it would be 
an added benefit to have access to Service Types and Alternate SPID’s for assigned phone numbers.  In 
fact, the ultimate desire of law enforcement would be to have online access to carrier information and 
current subscriber information with a single online inquiry.  I realize this is a tall order that is outside the 
scope of Neustar’s current capability, but it is a real issue for investigators as we continue to face the 
explosive growth of the communications industry and the challenges that come with it. 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on our current situation and thanks also for your continuing 
support of law enforcement throughout the country. 

Sgt. Andy Dawson 

Montgomery County Police Department 

Special Investigations Division 

2350 Research Blvd. 

Rockville, MD 20850 

301-840-2436 


